Manor Lake Civic Association By-Laws

Established – May 14, 1970 Revised – March 26, 2019

Article 1 - NAME

The name of this association shall be "Manor Lake Civic Association".

Article 2 – PURPOSE

This association is formed for the purpose of promoting community improvements, for the protection of the social and economic welfare of our community, and such other activities as may be deemed beneficial to the community as a whole.

Article 3 – MEMBERSHIP

Any person 18 years or more of age, who is a bona fide resident living in the area, or a non-resident who owns at least 50% of a residential property in the area, bounded on the south by Norbeck Road, on the north and west by Rock Creek Park lands and on the east by the subdivision known as "Flower Valley" may be a member.

Article 4 – VOTING PRIVILEGES OF PAID MEMBERS

Each member, who is present at any meeting and whose dues have been paid, is entitled to one vote.

Article 5 – DUES

The annual dues will be set by a majority vote of the members present at the fall general meeting.

Article 6 – ORGANIZATION

The executive board shall be called the "Edward Milenky executive board." The officers of the association shall be president, vice president, secretary, and treasurer, who shall be ex officio members of the executive board. The executive board shall be composed of the officers and a maximum of five other members of the association, duly elected at the fall general meeting. The president will be chairperson of the executive board.

Article 7 – DUTIES AND POWERS OF OFFICERS

<u>Section A:</u> It shall be the duty of the president to preside at all meetings of the association, to appoint the chairpersons, and fill vacancies on standing committees with the approval of the executive board, and to cast a deciding vote on any question in the case of a tie, in the event it becomes necessary for the president to vacate the chair, the vice president shall assume the duties of the president. If the vice president is not available, then the secretary shall assume the chair, and if not available, the treasurer shall assume the chair.

<u>Section B</u>: The vice president will assist the president. It will be the duty of the vice president to preside at a meeting in the absence of the president.

Section C: It shall be the duty of the secretary to record the minutes of all meetings, to read the minutes of the previous meeting for approval unless such reading is waived, to keep the official correct copy of the by-laws as part of the association's record, and write such correspondence as may be deemed necessary by the president.

Section D: It shall be the duty of the treasurer to collect all monies due the association and to deposit the same in a depository approved by the executive board. The treasurer shall also keep a current membership list and certify to the president and the association such list of fully paid up members who are eligible to vote at any meeting. The treasurer, or in his/her absence, the president, shall disburse the funds of the association only by the direction of the association, or the executive board. All checks dispersing funds must be countersigned by another officer. The treasurer shall make a report at each regular meeting and when called upon by the president. The accounts of the treasurer shall be audited prior to the fall general meeting by a committee of two qualified persons from the community selected by the president and approved by the executive board.

Article 8 – ELECTION OF OFFICERS AND TERM OF OFFICE

Section A: Officers and members of the executive board shall be elected at the fall general meeting and shall serve for one year or until their successors shall be elected.

<u>Section B</u>: A nominating committee of five members shall be appointed by the president two months before the fall general meeting to place in nomination at least one person for each office and at least five persons for the executive board. Within 30 days of its appointment, the nominating committee shall notify the secretary in writing of the names and offices for which nominations are made. Members of the nominating committee may not be candidates for office. Any member who wishes to be a candidate must be a current paid member of the Manor Lake Civic Association; submit a short biography using the criteria requested by the nominating committee; notify the secretary at least 21 days prior to the fall general meeting. The secretary shall, at least 14 days but not more than 20 days prior to the fall general meeting,

notify each member of the association of the names of the persons so nominated and requesting candidacy.

Section C: Additional nominations may be made from the floor for each office. A nominee must be a current paid member of the Manor Lake Civic Association and must present a short biography using criteria requested by the nominating committee and shall be present at the meeting.

<u>Section D</u>: Election shall be by ballot and a majority of those present and voting shall elect the officers and board members, the president shall appoint four tellers to count and report the vote.

Section E: All officers and members of the executive board shall assume their duties at the conclusion of the meeting at which they are elected.

Section F: A member of the board will notify the secretary in writing of his or her resignation.

<u>Section G:</u> in the event a vacancy occurs on the board (for any reason) in mid-term, a willing candidate who is a bona fide member of the community as described in Article 3 may be appointed to fill that vacancy by a simple majority vote of the board at a regular meeting. The term of this member will be until the next fall general meeting, at which they may run for election.

Article 9 – FIDUCIARY AND CONFIDENTIALITY OBLIGATIONS OF BOARD MEMBERS

<u>Section A</u>: A board member has a fiduciary duty to act in the best interests of the community and members, and not seek to promote an individual business or pecuniary interest. If a board member appears to the board to be acting where a conflict of interest or apparent conflict of interest exists, the board at a proper meeting shall take appropriate action, in its sole discretion, to remedy that breach or apparent breach, including but not limited to removal of the board member.

<u>Section B</u>: The community wishes for there to be full and frank discussions at board meetings. Any action taken by the board shall be recorded in the minutes and be available for review by any member. The board may also take other steps to communicate the decisions taken to the members. However, pre-decisional discussions at board meetings shall be held in confidence by board members.

Violations of this obligation shall be remedied as the board deems appropriate, up to and including removal of the offending member.

Section C: All elected board members will be required to sign a confidentiality agreement at the beginning of their elected term.

Article 10 – ORDER OF BUSINESS

The order of business at a general meeting shall be:

- Call to order
- Approval of agenda
- Reading of minutes
- Treasurer's report
- Reading of communications, bills and notices
- Committee reports
- Old business
- New business
- Adjourn

Article 11 – COMMITTEES

Section A: Standing committees may be created with such membership as deemed necessary by the executive board. Committees may include:

- Membership
- Community improvement landscaping and beautification
- Finance
- Environment / health / zoning
- Roads / traffic / safety
- Social
- Legislation
- Communications

Section B: Special ad·hoc committees may be created by the president.

Article 12 – DUTIES OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

It shall be the duty of this board to manage, conduct, and have general supervision over the financial and business affairs of the association, subject, however, to the right of the members of the association to authorize expenditures not in the budget exceeding \$500.00 and to fix dues. It shall also be the duty of this board to aid and cooperate with all other committees as the need arises. Minutes of such meetings shall be kept and duly reported at the next regular meeting by the secretary.

Article 13 – MEETINGS

There shall be at least two general meetings per year, one in the spring and one in the fall. Special meetings may be called by the president whenever, in his/her judgment, it may seem necessary, or upon written request of no less than fifteen members of the association. When a special meeting is called, written notice of the purpose of the meeting shall be sent to the members of the association at least five calendar days in advance and no other business may be considered at the meeting.

Article 14 – QUORUM

A quorum of the association shall be 20 members who are eligible to vote; of the executive board a majority; and of any standing committee one-half of the total number of members thereof, provided that if any standing committee consists of more than eight members, four members thereof shall constitute a quorum.

A quorum shall be necessary at any meeting at which business is to be transacted, including election of officers.

Article 15 – PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURES

"Robert's Rules of Order, Revised" shall be used as authority for parliamentary procedure.

Article 16 – AMENDMENTS

Amendments to these by-laws shall be proposed to the association and presented in writing at any regular business meeting or special meeting called for such a purpose. They shall not be acted upon until the following meeting, either regular or special, called for such purpose. No amendment shall be adopted, except by a two-thirds majority of those present and voting.